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1.  LICENSEE/LOCATION INSPECTED: 2. NRC/REGIONAL OFFICE

3. DOCKET NUMBER(S) 4. LICENSE NUMBER(S) 5. DATE(S) OF INSPECTION

LICENSEE:
The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license.  The inspection consisted of selective examinations of 
procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector.  The inspection findings are as follows:

1. Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.

2. Previous violation(s) closed.

3. The violations(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-identified, 
non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise 
discretion, were satisfied.

4.

Non-cited violation(s) were discussed involving the following requirement(s):

During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being 
cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance 
with 10 CFR 19.11.
(Violations and Corrective Actions)

Statement of Corrective Actions
I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified.  This statement of 
corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken, 
date when full compliance will be achieved).  I understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.
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1.  Licensee Name:

Missouri Department of Transportation
2.  Docket Number(s):

030-18363
3.  License Number(s)

24-20415-01

4.  Report Number(s):

2022001
5.  Date(s) of Inspection:

March 9, 2022
6.  Inspector(s):

Zahid Sulaiman, Health Physicist
7.  Program Code(s):

03121
8.  Priority:

5
9.  Inspection Guidance Used:

87124

10.  Licensee Contact Name(s):

Lydia Brownell, RSO 
Niall Jansson, PE, Field Office 

11.  Licensee E-mail Address:

lydia.brownell@modot.mo.gov 
matthew.jansson@mdot.mo.gov

12.  Licensee Telephone Number(s):

573-526-4628 
314-275-1525

13.  Inspection Type: Initial

Routine✔ Announced

Non-Routine Unannounced✔ Temporary Job Site

Field Office ✔Main Office

14.  Locations Inspected:

Remote 

15.  Next Inspection Date (MM/DD/YYYY):

-- Normal

Reduced

Extended

No change✔

16.  Scope and Observations:

This was an unannounced routine inspection of a state government DOT agency authorized to use portable 
moisture/density gauges for road construction projects.  This inspection reviewed the licensee's field office located in 
Maryland Heights, Missouri.   Each field office (of 31 field offices) had a designated individual who served as the 
local RSO.  At this field office, the licensee employed nine authorized gauge users who completed the manufacturer 
and the DOT hazmat training.  The licensee possessed one Troxler Model 3430 portable gauge at this field office.  
The gauge was secured in accordance with the two-tangible-barrier rule, at the licensee's facility.     
 
                                                                         Performance Observations 
 
This inspection consisted of a tour of the facilities, interview with select licensee personnel, a review of select 
records, an observation of security of the materials, and independent measurement.  At the time of the inspection, no 
gauge work was scheduled.  The inspector had the licensee staff described gauge use, storage of gauge at 
temporary job site and during transportation, emergency procedure, placement of shipping papers in the vehicle, and 
other procedures.  The portable gauges were adequately secured with two independent physical barriers while in 
storage at the field office or during transportation.  The gauge user demonstrated how the devices were blocked and 
braced,  and secured with two independent barriers in the rear of the vehicle.  The inspector reviewed selection of 
licensee records including leak tests, package receipts, utilization log, training records, and emergency response 
procedure.  Through these demonstrations, observation, and discussion, the inspector found that the licensee staff 
was knowledgeable of radiation protection principles and licensee procedures,  The inspector performed 
independent and confirmatory radiation measurements which indicated no residual contamination or exposures to 
members of the public in excess of regulatory limits. 
 
No violations of NRC requirements were identified during this inspection. 


